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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Good morning, and

          3  we have two items, three, I'm sorry, three items

          4  before us.  One is regarding the regulations of the

          5  newsracks, which I would like the public to know

          6  that there is a second bill that is floating out

          7  there that just was released now that I think you

          8  should take a look at.

          9                 And Intro. 747, which the

         10  Commissioner is waiting so patiently in his seat to

         11  testify before us, which I will get to in a second.

         12                 And a Preconsidered change, and this

         13  is just a technical change.

         14                 But you know, if you look at it,

         15  we're dealing with everything, we're dealing with

         16  children, people, dangers, every law before us has

         17  something interesting about the communities.

         18                 Basically, the bill number 3, is a

         19  Preconsidered on fixing the coin stand, fix stand

         20  coins, it operates the rides.  In many neighborhoods

         21  we have those kiddy rides in front of the stores, it

         22  is just the succession of the time rate element of

         23  it. It seems like some of the enforcement people are

         24  having fun, they took it literally, if it says nine

         25  o'clock, it cannot be out, the ride, at 8:45 in the
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          2  morning, and people are getting summonses.  So it is

          3  just a technical change, and we're going to change

          4  it from 9:00 a.m. to allow from 7:00 a.m. to 11:00

          5  p.m., that is what the change is going to have.

          6                 Okay, Commissioner.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  Good morning Mr.

          8  Chairman, and members of the Transportation

          9  Committee.  My name is Matthew Daus. I am the

         10  Commissioner and Chair of the New York City Taxi and

         11  Limousine Commission.  Thank you for inviting me to

         12  testify today in favor of Intro. No. 747.  I would

         13  also like to thank, Chairman Dear, of this

         14  Committee, for his leadership in supporting and

         15  advancing this bill.  This proposed legislation has

         16  been a part of Mayor Giuliani's Legislative Agenda

         17  for the TLC since 1998, and was drafted by the

         18  Corporation Counsel's Office, in conjunction with

         19  the TLC Legal Department.

         20                 On March 1, 1971, former Mayor John

         21  Lindsay signed into law a bill that created the TLC.

         22    Today, this Committee has the opportunity, some

         23  thirty years later, to consider and approve a bill

         24  that would truly make the TLC the Taxi and Limousine

         25  Commission.
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          2                 When the TLC was created, the

          3  drafters of the legislation intended that the

          4  Commission be granted the authority to regulate the

          5  medallion cab industry, as well as the livery and

          6  limousine industries.  The Commission was charged

          7  with the responsibility of developing a

          8  comprehensive system of regulations governing all

          9  aspects of the transportation, of passengers, for

         10  hire in New York City.  Initially, the TLC focused

         11  upon the regulation of the medallion taxicab

         12  industry, and later developed, in cooperation with

         13  the City Council, comprehensive regulations of other

         14  for- hire industries.  The Commission also

         15  ultimately obtained jurisdiction over the para-

         16  transit and commuter van industries, which also

         17  transport passengers for- hire.

         18                 With respect to the livery and

         19  limousine industries, the TLC was granted the

         20  authority to regulate vehicles designed to carry up

         21  to eight passengers.  Consistent with this

         22  authority, the Commission has:

         23                 1.  Established rigorous licensing

         24  criteria to ensure that drivers are qualified.

         25                 2.  Enacted a comprehensive series of
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          2  regulations to ensure that drivers provide

          3  courteous, safe and dependable transportation to all

          4  customers.

          5                 3.  Enacted safety requirements for

          6  vehicles to ensure that each vehicle licensed by it

          7  as a livery or a limousine is inspected three times

          8  a year, rather than once, as is required for other

          9  vehicles pursuant to State law.

         10                 4.  Protected passengers, pedestrians

         11  and other motorists injured in accidents by enacting

         12  financial responsibility and insurance requirements

         13  that exceed State minimums.

         14                 And finally, implemented a system to

         15  review and adjudicate consumer complaints against

         16  its licensees, including drivers, vehicle owners and

         17  business owners.

         18                 Section 19- 502(g) of the

         19  Administrative Code has existed in its present form

         20  since the Commission was created in 1971.  At that

         21  time, the drafters of this legislation intended that

         22  the Commission license and regulate all for- hire

         23  vehicles, except vehicles such as buses and commuter

         24  vans, which are separately defined and regulated

         25  under State law.  Accordingly, since 1971 the
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          2  Commission has licensed drivers, vehicles owners and

          3  businesses operating neighborhood care services,

          4  black car bases, limousine and even luxury limousine

          5  services, as long as the vehicle did not have a

          6  seating capacity in excess of eight passengers.

          7                 State law permits a local government

          8  regulatory authority, such as the TLC, to regulate

          9  taxicabs, livery vehicles and limousines, with a

         10  seating capacity of up to twenty persons. Today, we

         11  are asking this Committee to approve legislation

         12  that would enable the City of New York and the TLC,

         13  to exercise the jurisdiction that has been

         14  authorized pursuant to the State Transportation Law.

         15                 I would like to share with you,

         16  members of the Committee, a few examples that will

         17  highlight the need for this legislation:

         18                 First, a driver of a limousine

         19  carrying no more than eight passengers must be

         20  licensed by the TLC.  To obtain a license, an

         21  applicant must submit to mandatory drug testing and

         22  a criminal background review.  Drivers who have been

         23  convicted of serious offenses, or who cannot pass a

         24  drug test, may be denied licensure.

         25                 A driver of a limousine carrying
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          2  between nine and fourteen passengers only needs to

          3  get a State- issued chauffeurs license to carry

          4  passengers in a limousine for- hire.  The driver is

          5  not subjected to any background investigation, and

          6  as long as his/her State license is not revoked, he

          7  may drive a limousine.

          8                 For your information, I, last week,

          9  converted my Class D license to a Class E license.

         10  I went to DMV, I paid a fee, I am now licensed under

         11  State law to drive a limousine, and I have no clue

         12  as to where to begin to operate one of those big

         13  super stretched limousines, that is just to

         14  highlight the issue before us, how easy it is.

         15                 Also a driver of a limousine carrying

         16  fifteen or more passengers must obtain a Commercial

         17  Drivers' License.  The requirements are more

         18  stringent than those of a regular State issued

         19  license, but are not as stringent as TLC

         20  requirements.  It's a little hazy the regulatory

         21  scheme that we have before us.

         22                 A second example involves insurance

         23  requirements for vehicles.  The TLC licenses luxury

         24  limousine bases.  These bases must maintain

         25  insurance of $500,000 per person and $1 million per
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          2  occurrence, if the vehicles have a seating capacity

          3  of fewer than nine passengers.

          4                 If the vehicles have a capacity

          5  between nine or more passengers, the insurance

          6  requirements are less, they're the State minimums,

          7  which for these vehicles are $25,000 per person and

          8  either $80,000 or $120,000 per occurrence,

          9  significantly lower than the TLC's requirements.

         10                 A vehicle engaging in interstate

         11  commerce must maintain $1.5 million in liability

         12  insurance, but this requirement only applies to

         13  vehicles that transport passengers across state

         14  lines.

         15                 Again, these requirements imposed

         16  upon drivers and owners of larger vehicles are in

         17  fact less than the requirements imposed upon smaller

         18  vehicles that are licensed by the TLC.

         19                 Under current law, a luxury limousine

         20  base may have affiliated with it vehicles licensed

         21  by the TLC as well as larger vehicles which are not

         22  under the jurisdiction of the TLC.  A passenger in a

         23  an eight- passenger vehicle may file a complaint

         24  with the Commission, if there is a problem with the

         25  ride or the driver. Any passenger with a similar
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          2  complaint against the driver, you know, including

          3  harassment, abuse, an assault, the passenger cannot

          4  file a complaint against the driver of a ten-

          5  passenger or more vehicle and has no recourse before

          6  the Commission, since the driver would not be

          7  required to hold a TLC license.  Hence, we have no

          8  jurisdiction.

          9                 Anyone traveling about the streets of

         10  the City of New York can observe that there has been

         11  a proliferation of larger vehicles in recent years.

         12  Limousines are larger than ever, these vehicles have

         13  longer wheelbases and carry more passengers than

         14  ever before.  While in 1971, limousines with seating

         15  capacities of fewer than nine passengers may have

         16  been the norm, today, the trend is for larger

         17  vehicles with more seats and with more passengers.

         18  Vehicles and drivers that are essentially

         19  unregulated.  Stretched limousines and the so-

         20  called super- stretch limousines may be up to a half

         21  block long and can carry fifteen or more passengers.

         22    These vehicles are generally not built by

         23  manufacturers under strict Federal safety

         24  guidelines, the way passenger cars are built.

         25  Rather, these limousines are often built as smaller
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          2  vehicles and then altered by a secondary

          3  manufacturer, who could compromise the structural

          4  integrity of the vehicle.  These vehicles are not

          5  certified by the original manufacturer.  Often, the

          6  original manufacturer will no longer even honor its

          7  warranty because an alteration was made.  These

          8  vehicles are then placed on the road after a minimal

          9  State inspection under the supervision of the

         10  Department of Motor Vehicles.  Some of these

         11  vehicles may even be altered by secondary

         12  manufacturers after inspection, which could be a

         13  very real problem.

         14                 If this bill is passed, the TLC would

         15  be empowered consistent with its authority pursuant

         16  to the Charter to require that these vehicles

         17  undergo adequate and appropriate safety inspections

         18  before they are licensed by the Commission to

         19  operate for- hire on the streets of the City.

         20  Safety, responsibility and accountability, these are

         21  the regulatory goals of the TLC, which must be

         22  applied to all vehicles, large and small,

         23  transporting passengers for- hire.

         24                 The Federal government has enacted

         25  stricter licensing, insurance and safety
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          2  requirements in recent years. These laws and

          3  regulations protect passengers traveling across

          4  State lines.  At the same time, many states, such as

          5  New Jersey, have enacted laws imposing stricter

          6  standards upon these larger vehicles.  New York

          7  State has chosen to defer the regulation of such

          8  vehicles, with a seating capacity of up to twenty

          9  passengers, to local governments and regulatory

         10  authority's such as the TLC and the City Council and

         11  the City of New York.  Nonetheless, the City of New

         12  York does not have a comprehensive regulatory system

         13  governing the licensing and conduct of the owners

         14  and operators of these larger vehicles.

         15                 The TLC and its staff have surveyed

         16  taxicabs and limousine regulations in other

         17  jurisdictions throughout the country.  Limousines

         18  are not uniformly defined, and indeed, even under

         19  New York State law, there is no definition of a

         20  limousine. By consensus, a limousine provides luxury

         21  travel, and charge clients generally upon the basis

         22  of time.  Most luxury limousines charge clients an

         23  hourly rate, irrespective of distance traveled.

         24  Obviously, the rates for a limousine are far in

         25  excess of the rates charged by taxicabs or liveries.
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          2    Although most jurisdictions do not distinguish

          3  between livery vehicles and limousines within their

          4  regulatory scheme, it is clear that many States and

          5  localities license and regulate vehicles with a

          6  seating capacity of greater than eight passengers.

          7  Fifteen- to twenty- passenger capacities appears to

          8  be the norm among jurisdictions that regulate on the

          9  basis of vehicle seating capacity.  Indeed, even if

         10  New York State clearly permits local regulation of

         11  vehicles up to a capacity of twenty passengers, this

         12  bill would merely authorize the TLC to exercise

         13  jurisdiction permitted consistent with State law.

         14                 In sum, the choice today is not

         15  between TLC regulation and regulation by another

         16  government body.  The choice is between TLC

         17  regulation or no regulation at all.  Larger, super

         18  size, luxury vehicles, charging premium fares, are

         19  not required to maintain the same level of insurance

         20  as smaller vehicles.  Their drivers are not subject

         21  to the same licensing requirements as drivers of

         22  smaller vehicles, and their businesses are not held

         23  to the same levels of professionalism and

         24  accountability as those of the drivers of smaller

         25  vehicles.
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          2                 I strongly urge you to make the Taxi

          3  and Limousine Commission live up to its name, by

          4  enabling it to regulate all limousines fairly and

          5  equitably, irrespective of size.  I therefore

          6  request that you favorably vote to report Intro. No.

          7  757 from this Committee, and I urge its passage

          8  before the full City Council as soon as possible.

          9                 And of course I would be happy to

         10  answer any questions, but before I do so, I want to,

         11  again, commend the leadership of the City Council,

         12  Councilman Dear, and also the industry, the Black

         13  Car Limousine Industry, the regulated ones who have

         14  indicated support for this legislation.

         15                 And just on a note, I was just

         16  speaking to Council Member Freed about this, and it

         17  is too often that government, unfortunately, in the

         18  past, not this government, but in general, often

         19  reacts to a situation after a tragedy or some wrong

         20  has occurred.  I am glad and really happy to see

         21  that Councilman Dear is putting this legislation

         22  forward in a proactive way with the Council to try

         23  to make sure that we can put proper safety standards

         24  and regulations in place before something bad would

         25  happen.  And I want to commend you for your

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  leadership, and I want to thank you for the

          3  opportunity to appear.   And I would be happy to

          4  answer any questions that you have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  One quick one

          6  because - -

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Okay, and

          8  because of interest of whatever, honest, whatever, I

          9  also used to have a chauffeurs license, and it was

         10  nothing to getting it.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  I know, I

         12  actually thought you had a hack license.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Same

         14  difference, I mean, I had both.

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  You had a taxicab

         16  license.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Yes.  But I'm,

         18  no, I just wanted to say that the conversation we

         19  had before did deal especially with the stretch and

         20  super- stretch, and the problems that we continue to

         21  have with them in certain areas, and the length that

         22  does not fit into a lot of streets.  And it is kind

         23  of horrifying to find that there are basically no

         24  laws at this time on them.  And it is even more

         25  annoying to find out that other states actually
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          2  impose them, and clearly we should be doing

          3  something.

          4                 So not only do I, obviously, support

          5  this, I would like to be put on as a co- prime.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  Thank you,

          7  Councilwoman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you very

          9  much, okay, thank you.

         10                 Eugene Pero and Alan (sic) Grover.

         11  Do you want to try to limit the testimony because

         12  when the going is good, let's not try to derail it?

         13  Welcome, I hope you did not come by stretch limo,

         14  this morning.

         15                 MR. PERO:  Good morning.  Happy

         16  Holiday to everybody, Happy Hanukkah, and Merry

         17  Christmas, Quanta, and everything else.

         18                 Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.

         19  This is Arthur Grover, he represents the Staten

         20  Island Livery Association.

         21                 MR. GROVER:  Alan, I'm not.  Listen I

         22  changed my name.  Arthur, Artie, Arthur.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  You're right.  But

         24  I, either I need new glasses or you are going to

         25  have to go back to school for penmanship, but - -
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          2                 MR. PERO:  You're talking about my

          3  handwriting right now.

          4                 MR. GROVER:  Discussing his

          5  handwriting, yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  That is why you

          7  are in the livery business and not an accountant.

          8                 MR. PERO:  My mother said I should

          9  have been a doctor, I could write prescriptions

         10  well.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  That is

         12  absolutely, go ahead.

         13                 MR. PERO:  Good morning, ladies and

         14  gentlemen.  My name is Eugene Pero.  I'm the

         15  President of the Livery Owners Coalition of New

         16  York, the owner of Safeway Car Service for the past

         17  30 years, and a member of the Taxi and Limousine

         18  Commission's Livery Advisory Board.

         19                 The Livery Owners Coalition of New

         20  York, an organization which represents many fleet

         21  owned bases and independent operator bases in the

         22  five boroughs of New York, wishes to indicate that

         23  we are in favor of passage of Intro. No. 747 for the

         24  following reasons:

         25                 Since the inception of the famous 17
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          2  rules by the Taxi and Limousine Commissioner two

          3  years ago, the caliber of livery drivers and for-

          4  hire operators has been elevated.  The institution

          5  of drug testing, defensive driving courses and

          6  monitoring of offenses on the driver's license with

          7  suspension of driving privileges and revocation for

          8  repeat offenders have all contributed in this

          9  positive way.  However, limousine drivers, up until

         10  now, have been exempt from this scrutinization, and

         11  many suspended livery drivers or drivers who do not

         12  pass the drug tests, are being hired by limousine

         13  companies.  This will, of course, compromise the

         14  safety of the riding public, especially since

         15  stretch limousines carry more passengers at one time

         16  than a regular sedan.

         17                 In addition, the safety requirements

         18  of limousines are not being enforced.  Many

         19  limousines start out as 6 to 8 passenger vehicles,

         20  but are stretched to accommodate 12 or more without

         21  being tested for safety or body design.

         22                 We are confident that limousine

         23  operators should and must be controlled by either

         24  DOT or the Taxi and Limousine Commission.  Since

         25  their name is already included in the TLC, that
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          2  agency should regulate all taxis and limousines.

          3                 It is ironic that all for- hire

          4  vehicles in this City are governed by the Taxi and

          5  Limousine Commission, except for limousines which is

          6  part of their name.

          7                 That is basically what I have to say.

          8    We feel that we support 747.  We feel that as

          9  experienced operators in this industry, as Chairman

         10  Daus brought out, there are a multitude of

         11  complaints that are not addressed, whether they send

         12  a vehicle that is inappropriate, not on time, or a

         13  multitude of other problems, and they have no

         14  recourse.  And like we mentioned before, the drivers

         15  that leave our industry, the livery industry, wind

         16  up finding jobs as limo operators, because they know

         17  the roads and they favor them better.

         18                 Any questions?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  No, thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MR. PERO:  You're welcome.  Thank

         22  you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Welcome, Victor.

         24                 MR. DIZENGOFF:  May I?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes, Sir.
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          2                 MR. DIZENGOFF:  Good morning,

          3  Chairman Dear, members of the Transportation

          4  Committee.  My name is Victor Dizengoff.  I'm the

          5  Executive Director of the Black Car Assistance

          6  Corporation, trade association of the black car

          7  industry, and I come before you today to testify in

          8  support of Intro. 747.

          9                 The BCAC represents approximately 40

         10  companies, which have approximately 10,000

         11  affiliated vehicles.  To the extent that we

         12  represent the companies, we're also concerned with

         13  the driver issues.

         14                 I should also note for the record

         15  that I am the Chairman of the Board and the

         16  Executive Director of the New York Black Car

         17  Operators Injury Compensation Fund.  A fund

         18  established and signed into law by Governor Pataki

         19  in 1999 for the express purpose of providing workers

         20  compensation insurance for black car drivers.  The

         21  black car industry has, since its inception, and

         22  continues to be an industry regulated by the New

         23  York City Taxi and Limousine Commission.  Our

         24  primary concern, in addition to the quality service

         25  we provide our clients, has always been and
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          2  continues to be their safety and the safety of all

          3  citizens of New York, its visitors and its

          4  commuters.

          5                 Our Board of Directors having met in

          6  session unanimously agreed that the passage of

          7  Intro. 747 into law is essential.  By its passage

          8  the bill will give the Taxi Limousine Commission the

          9  ability to regulate those limousines not currently

         10  regulated by the agency, and will ensure the safety

         11  of the riding public.

         12                 I'm very brief today.  In conclusion,

         13   - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  You're learning,

         15  look how many years it took.

         16                 MR. DIZENGOFF:  I took all that

         17  criticism to heart.

         18                 In conclusion, let me first praise

         19  the TLC, Chairman Daus and his staff for the job

         20  they have done in dealing with the horrendous acts

         21  of September 11th, and with assisting the industry

         22  during this time of need.

         23                 Let me add that by passing this piece

         24   - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  What they gave you
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          2  a raise already, I'm not sure, the yellows - -

          3                 MR. DIZENGOFF:  No, not at all.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  They did not give

          5  it to you yet, okay.

          6                 MR. DIZENGOFF:  Let me add that by

          7  passing this piece of proposed legislation you give

          8  the TLC the resources needed to bring legitimate

          9  operators into the fold and rid the City's streets

         10  of illegal operators.

         11                 Any questions, I would be more than

         12  glad to answer.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thanks.

         14                 MR. DIZENGOFF:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you, I

         16  appreciate that, thank you.

         17                 And of course, the infamous and

         18  distinguished, Stephen Spencer.

         19                 MR. SPENCER:  Good morning, - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Good morning.

         21                 MR. SPENCER: - -  Chairman Dear and

         22  members of the Transportation Committee.  My name is

         23  Stephen W. Spencer.  I have owned and operated a

         24  chauffeured limousine service known as London Town

         25  Cars since 1960.  When the regulation of taxicabs
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          2  was transferred from the Police Hack Bureau to a new

          3  agency, the New York City Taxi and Limousine

          4  Commission, we found an association of limousine

          5  operators because we were now included in the

          6  jurisdiction of the Taxi and Limousine Commission,

          7  under a separate category.

          8                 At the time, the standard chauffeured

          9  limousine had a seating capacity of up to seven

         10  passengers plus the driver. Since then the changes

         11  in the public demand and competition among the

         12  independent Coach builders has led to longer

         13  vehicles with a seating capacity up to twenty

         14  passengers.  Neither these vehicles nor drivers of

         15  vehicles for the capacity of over seven, which is

         16  now actually over eight passengers, have come under

         17  the TLC rules, because there were no such vehicles

         18  in use when the rules were written.

         19                 Therefore, on behalf of the Limousine

         20  Association of New York, I urge that the New York

         21  City Taxi and Limousine Commission be given

         22  jurisdiction over the vehicles seating up to twenty

         23  persons, not including the driver, and their

         24  drivers. Furthermore, these vehicles and their

         25  drivers should meet the same criteria as the
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          2  vehicles and drivers now licensed by the New York

          3  City Taxi and Limousine Commission.

          4                 That is my, those are my comments.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you very

          6  much, I appreciate it, thank you.

          7                 Okay, could you get the Council

          8  members here so we can vote on the stretch limo bill

          9  while the Commissioner is still here, give him a

         10  Hanukkah present.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  So I can leave

         12  knowing a sense of completion.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Right.  And we're

         14  going to vote on the coin operated, unless someone

         15  is here to testify on that bill.  So we're voting on

         16  747 and the Preconsidered changing hours for fixed

         17  stand coin operator rides, operated on sidewalks

         18  between the hours of 7:00 a.m. To 11:00 p.m.

         19                 Can we get Council Member Miller

         20  here?

         21                 If anyone is here for the

         22  Subcommittee of Landmarks and Public Sitings, we're

         23  going to start downstairs in the Green Room.

         24  Reminds like in the Synagogue, if they minion

         25  (phonetic) didn't finish this morning, it goes
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          2  upstairs, we go downstairs, though.

          3                 TLC and coin operated rides.  Can we

          4  call the roll, call Mr. Miller first?

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Miller.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Dear.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lopez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Permission to

         11  explain my vote?  Did the Chairman say yes or no?

         12  The Chairman is talking, okay.  Can I speak?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Yes, I'm sorry.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay.  I have

         15  a problem with this bill.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Which one?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  With the bill

         18  that we just listened to it.  And I'm going to

         19  clarify this in just one relationship, in

         20  relationship to one thing.  It is in relationship to

         21  impairing people to acquire a need for job.  When

         22  the regulation is explained and said that if the

         23  person have past criminal record, it is in regard to

         24  that.  I do believe that we need to control,

         25  regulate industry that take care of people being
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          2  transport one way or another, back and forth.  And I

          3  do understand the need to do that in connection to

          4  substance abuse.

          5                 My problem with the bill is that it

          6  does not give the opportunity to anybody who was

          7  convicted of that to be rehabilitated.  And if that

          8  person has been rehabilitated and have a past

          9  conviction, and that conviction happened 10- years,

         10  why that person cannot acquire a job, if he is no

         11  longer abusing substances? Why the person cannot

         12  have a job in this industry, particularly when we're

         13  dealing in a situation where these are fairly good

         14  jobs, entry level jobs for low- skilled individuals

         15  who can develop skills later with other areas.  And

         16  it concerns me, how is it that we constantly impair

         17  the capacity of people to acquire a job once they

         18  are rehabilitated, and I wonder if our criminal

         19  system and our other system is in conjunction with

         20  both?  That is the serious problem I have with this

         21  bill.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  We're in a middle

         23  of a roll call, so what I will do, is, if you want

         24  to settle this, I will leave open the vote for you.

         25  And I could have the Commissioner come, either
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          2  testify on the record after we finish the roll call,

          3  or I could have the Commissioner talk to you about

          4  your concerns.  I just asked him that.

          5                 All right, so let's, I will ask you

          6  not to vote, I will hold open the roll, and then

          7  continue the roll and then get back to you.  Okay?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  All right.  I

          9  mean, - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  We're in the

         11  middle of roll call.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I understand

         13  that, I just cannot comprehend how we can vote a

         14  piece of legislation that is cutting possible jobs

         15  for people, just in the base have a past criminal

         16  record and that person is rehabilitated and we don't

         17  take that into consideration.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council member,

         19  okay, on that, so you want to hold the roll to vote

         20  on that issue.

         21                 Go ahead, continue the roll.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Nelson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Freed.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  So I'm voting
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          2  aye on 747, and as I said I would like to be a co-

          3  prime on that.  But I'm going to abstain on the

          4  other one.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  We need Walter.

          6  Can we have Walter come in right now, please?

          7                 Vote on the Preconsidered.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Yes, on that

          9  one.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council member.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  On the

         12  Intro.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And also coin

         14  operated, it's two, the two bills.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCCAFFREY:  Aye.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, thank you.

         17  So I will conclude and we will hold open the vote.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 So explain Council Member Lopez's

         20  issue.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  Yes, Council

         22  Member Lopez, I understand your concerns.  I just

         23  want to reassure you that there is a process in

         24  place that no one is automatically at the TLC denied

         25  a license because of a past conviction.  No, they
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          2  could be. Basically, all this law would allow us to

          3  do, is to apply the existing regs and the existing

          4  standards that we have in place now to the stretch

          5  limos.

          6                 What we have in place now is as

          7  follows:

          8                 There is a State law that we comply

          9  with, it's the State Corrections Law, Section 752,

         10  which makes it a requirement of government before

         11  you issue or not issue a license to somebody, if

         12  they have a past criminal history that you have to

         13  do a case- by case analysis of - -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Let me stop

         15  you.  It is not that I don't want you to talk, I

         16  want to move the process forward.

         17                 I understood all that.  How do you

         18  make possible for a person who make mistakes in

         19  their life, at a given moment?  They were 20- years-

         20  old, they have a conviction.  They are 30- years-

         21  old now, they have not used substances, they are

         22  fine, they're clean, they went through a

         23  rehabilitation process, that that person can drive a

         24  limo.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  They can.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  How?

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  After they have a

          4  hearing with the judge.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And who, how

          6  that hearing go, explain to me what is that about?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  Just what I was

          8  explaining about the law.  The law requires that you

          9  go over a variety of factors, including how long ago

         10  the conviction was, what is the relationship between

         11  the conviction and the act of driving a cab.  There

         12  is a big distinction between somebody who is

         13  convicted for DWI, which has a direct relationship,

         14  than maybe engaging in some type of gambling

         15  activity, which may not.

         16                 So I can tell you that people with

         17  past convictions do get licenses.  Okay?  And the

         18  judge has to look into whether you have been

         19  rehabilitated.  The law and the judge looks into the

         20  factors that are in the law.

         21                 And the other factors, like you said,

         22  rehabilitation.  The person who is applying for the

         23  license can show evidence at the hearing that they

         24  have been rehabilitated, including a certificate of

         25  relief from disabilities, letters from clergy,
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          2  letters from the probation officer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay, thank

          4  you.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  So I want to say

          6  to you, if this law passes and you vote for it, the

          7  same process with the judges at the TLC that is in

          8  place now would apply to these operators who would

          9  be reapplying for licensure with us.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  For the record, I

         11  just want to add that I had a case of someone who

         12  had a criminal conviction who is still on probation.

         13    And I must tell you, to your predecessor, to her

         14  credit, I went to this case and she asked me for

         15  certain documentation, and she did issue a license

         16  to that person.  So there is recourse and I know

         17  this agency has been very, very sensitive to that.

         18                 The only thing they want to protect,

         19  and like everything else, there is State law and

         20  that the law want to protect, someone who is a

         21  violent criminal, you know, that - -

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I mean, I want

         23  to make clear that I'm not looking for a person who

         24  has been convicted of a rape to be driving a

         25  limousine, that is not what I'm looking for.  But
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          2  I'm looking we, to understand in the City that the

          3  Rockefeller Drug Logs are stupid, and we need to

          4  begin dealing with that issue as soon as possible.

          5  Because they have destroyed lives of families.

          6                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  I take it you're

          7  more concerned with equity and due process.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Yes.

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS:  And I can ensure

         10  you, Council member, that is what happens at TLC.

         11  There is equity and the balancing by the judge, and

         12  there is a recommendation that goes to me as the

         13  Commissioner.  And I can tell you that I have given

         14  licenses back to people who have rehabilitated

         15  themselves, because I feel strongly that it is the

         16  right thing to do.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you for

         18  the clarification.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  What do you vote?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I vote aye.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, so that is,

         22  she voted aye. I am going to keep open the vote

         23  because I think other Council members are at other

         24  Committees, so keep open the vote in the meanwhile.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 Okay, move onto newsracks, and I

          3  would like to call upon the first witness, Mr.

          4  Kovnor.

          5                 Okay, let's, just to make a

          6  clarification, what we have so far on the vote, go

          7  ahead.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of six in

          9  the affirmative, 0 negative, and no abstentions,

         10  Intro. No. 747 is adopted, passed.

         11                 And by a vote of 5 in the

         12  affirmative, 0 negative, and one abstention, the

         13  Presconsidered Intro. Is also adopted.

         14                 Please sign the reports.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.

         16  Identify yourself for the record.

         17                 MR. KOVNOR:  My name is Victor A.

         18  Kovnor.  I'm from the Office of Davis, Wright,

         19  Tremaine, T- R- E- M- A- I- N- E, and I'm speaking,

         20  this morning, on behalf, as I did a week ago, on

         21  behalf of the daily newspapers and the weekly

         22  newspapers in the City of New York.

         23                 In response to the request of this

         24  Committee at the hearing held roughly a week ago,

         25  and particularly in response to the request of
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          2  Council Member Lopez, Council Member Rodriguez and

          3  that of the Chair, Council Member Dear, I'm pleased

          4  to report that all of the newspapers were able to

          5  reach consensus, for the first time, upon

          6  legislation that we drafted and submitted to your

          7  staff, Mr. Chairman, last week.  And there were a

          8  number of technical questions that were worked out,

          9  particularly by Mr. Schwartz and Mr. Haverman, who

         10  are in the room, late Friday.  We did not complete

         11  that really until after the end of the day Friday,

         12  but you now have available to you a proposal that

         13  the newspapers will support, that does address many

         14  of the concerns, not all, but many of the concerns

         15  that have been brought before this Committee.

         16                 In particular, it implements most of

         17  the provisions of the 1984 agreement between the

         18  major newspapers and the then Corporation Counsel.

         19  And as the Chairman well knows, in 1988, the Supreme

         20  Court of the United States extended First Amendment

         21  protection to those non- newspapers, who distribute

         22  written material on the streets. And as a result,

         23  there is today, basically, some people complying

         24  with the provisions of the 84 Law, and I don't know,

         25  and others who have not thus far expressed that.
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          2                 But this proposal would address all

          3  of the boxes. And it would require that they not

          4  appear in inappropriate places, such as in

          5  crosswalks, next to fire hydrants, et cetera.  It

          6  would impose upon all those who own and place a box

          7  on the streets that they file with the Department of

          8  Commission, of Transportation, their name, address,

          9  telephone number and email address of the owner, and

         10  that that be affixed to each box.  It would

         11  authorize the Department of Transportation to

         12  monitor the obligation to maintain these boxes in a

         13  neat and clean manner, and it would provide the

         14  Department to authority to issue a ticket of

         15  violation, which would be heard and considered by

         16  the Environmental Control Board.  And so it would

         17  substantially enhance, I think, the neatness and

         18  cleanliness of the streets and upgrade the boxes

         19  that, unfortunately, in some instances and in some

         20  areas are less adequately maintained, and is

         21  appropriate.

         22                 These are goals that the newspaper

         23  industry shares with this Committee and it avoids

         24  the panoply of constitutional issues that were posed

         25  by the original 943- A.  I will not go into my
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          2  objections at length here.  I will note, the day

          3  following your last hearing, we did distribute them,

          4  provide a Memorandum to your staff and to the

          5  leadership of the Council, setting forth those

          6  constitutional restrictions, which were if that bill

          7  to be passed, as we urge it not be, would

          8  undoubtedly lead to litigation, injunctions, and no

          9  advancement in terms of the cleanliness of the

         10  streets.

         11                 So that we do, Mr. Chairman,

         12  respectively submit the bill we have proposed, but I

         13  don't know the number, Mr. Schwartz may tell me, a

         14  Preconsidered Bill, that if you wish to make a step

         15  forward in this area this year, that that is the

         16  direction you should go.

         17                 I know it does not solve all

         18  problems, but it does, I think, address the most

         19  urgent ones.  And I would be pleased to answer any

         20  questions that you and any member may have?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  One of the

         22  constitutional issues that you argued was that if

         23  next to a multiple box you have a single box, which

         24  under 943- A could be prohibited, could be, that

         25  they would be shut out because they would not have
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          2  any other way to disseminate their information.

          3  What happened before those boxes?

          4                 MR. KOVNOR:  Well actually nothing

          5  happened before and we made the decision not to

          6  address or legislate with respect to the multi-

          7  boxes.  There are many newspapers who feel that that

          8  is a significant step forward.  Those in the

          9  Business Improvement Districts that have helped

         10  create the multi- boxes, I think, have made a major

         11  contribution.  It is a step and a direction, I

         12  think, many people are interested in growth in terms

         13  of solution.

         14                 So this legislation that we have

         15  submitted does not particularly single out the

         16  multi- boxes at all, except that they already, I

         17  might add, do.  You know not be near crosswalks, and

         18  not be next to fire hydrants, et cetera.  But it

         19  leaves the multi- news box, multi- newsracks free to

         20  expand, and I think that is something that is

         21  healthy.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Going back to the

         23  constitutional issue, and maybe get me to

         24  understand, we're talking about a - - I'm not

         25  telling you not to publish, I'm not telling you not
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          2  to distribute, I'm not telling you not to sell, what

          3  we're talking about is a public safety issue.  I can

          4  take you now with me and go to Avenue M and Ocean

          5  Parkway and look at a New York Times box standing in

          6  the crosswalk.  I'm surprised that Henry has not

          7  been there yet and attack the box, or did something,

          8  take it away.  But it is literally in the pathway of

          9  where people are supposed to walk.  And I'm saying

         10  to myself, why did the person move it from one

         11  corner to another?  Very simple, the person who

         12  distributes, I saw it one morning, I realized, the

         13  person who actually fills the boxes found it easier

         14  for him to have the box on one side of the street,

         15  which is in the way of people walking, rather than

         16  having it on the corner, which would not interfere

         17  at all with pedestrian traffic at all.

         18                 My concern is, it's not a question

         19  of, we're not regulating free speech here.  What

         20  we're trying to do, is make, and that usually, that

         21  is something that we consider all the time, public

         22  safety, and I'm telling you, it is a very serious

         23  public safety issue.  And I'm concerned that, yes,

         24  your proposal that is Preconsidered under my

         25  authorship addresses some of those issues, but still
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          2  does not address the issue on how many boxes on a

          3  corner, about the owner of that building, the owner

          4  of the house, they have rights too.  If I had a

          5  house and I was to put out some boxes in front of my

          6  house, I would be fined in no time.  That if I did

          7  anything that would impede with public safety, they

          8  would come after me.  Here this is, we have seen it.

          9    It is a very clear, to me, danger and a public

         10  safety issue the way some of these boxes are

         11  located, and that is what we're trying to address

         12  here, and that is my concern here.

         13                 MR. KOVNOR:  Let me just address

         14  that, briefly, Mr. Chairman.  One is, if there is a

         15  New York Times box in a crosswalk on Avenue M, I do

         16  want to say that is against the policy of that

         17  company.  If they were alerted to it, they would

         18  correct it promptly.  They take pride in their

         19  boxes, and they do not want any of their boxes

         20  obstructing pedestrian or vehicular traffic.  So

         21  that if it were in a crosswalk, that should be the

         22  subject of discipline and indeed this bill that the

         23  newspapers have proposed, which I hope would go in

         24  under your sponsorship would address that issue.

         25                 The constitutional concerns we have
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          2  with originally 943- A are the wholesale assignment

          3  by the City Council over to a Mayoral appointee that

          4  the Commissioner of Transportation, and we have a

          5  very fine, superb Commissioner of Transportation,

          6  but we do not know who the successor would be, and

          7  give that, and leaves with that person enormous

          8  discretion over the granting of permits for

          9  placement of boxes.  That in terms of an industry,

         10  like the newspaper industry, really does threaten

         11  speech in that it gives government the ability to

         12  effect the placement and the access of newspapers to

         13  their readers, and that is a matter that the courts,

         14  I think, almost uniformly stricken.  Where there is

         15  no discretion, and this bill is relatively clear, it

         16  does not leave any subjective evaluation to a

         17  governmental official, that kind of legislation has

         18  generally survived scrutiny.  But I dare say that

         19  the bill we have proposed, which would not only

         20  address your concern, it would, in our view, meet

         21  constitutional challenges, and I quite frankly do

         22  not know that there would be one.  So that you would

         23  be, should you pass it, making, I think, a serious

         24  step forward for your constituents.

         25                 Although I do not want to argue that
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          2  it is going to resolve everyone's issue, that is

          3  plainly not true, but this would be a significant

          4  step forward.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I just want to

          6  respond to you and then see if any other members

          7  have any questions, because we're not going to vote

          8  on it today.  We will still, probably, have another

          9  meeting next week.  I'm just trying to, you know,

         10  digest some of it, and in particular, because in all

         11  fairness we have a bill before us that I introduced,

         12  the members first got today.  So they have to have

         13  an opportunity to see that too.

         14                 But I just want to, again, address

         15  the issue of the Constitution.  Not that I seem to

         16  be a constitutional expert, but I would think that I

         17  would understand as much as I can, that here we are

         18  not talking about regulating in a sense of limiting

         19  where you can sell your newspapers.  In fact, if

         20  your concern is the process will happen is that this

         21  goes to DOT, DOT holds public hearings on it and

         22  then has to appropriately publish it and enforce it.

         23    But then you still have recourse, the same way if

         24  we were to pass something here, and if the courts,

         25  at that point would say, okay, they overstepped
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          2  their bounds.  But I want to believe that the whole

          3  intent here is not because to put a limit.  And I

          4  have to give a little more credit to people who are

          5  going to become a Commissioner of a City agency in

          6  the City of New York, that they're not going to take

          7  their personal biases and decide I don't want to see

          8  the Times, I don't want to see the Post, because

          9  they started writing things about me, things like

         10  that.  I give more credit to that, I mean, I do not

         11  think we have, we're still a democratic city and

         12  we're still an open city, and we still abide by laws

         13  and everything else.

         14                 So I'm not concerned as much as you

         15  are, and you know it, it's the history of this city

         16  that when we do regulations we do it in mind that

         17  there are lawyers looking at it with the

         18  Constitution in mind.  And I'm sure Corp Counsel,

         19  since you have been the former head of Corp.

         20  Counsel, you respect the attorneys that work for

         21  Corp. Counsel.  So I'm not as concerned, and that is

         22  what bugs me about this thing, because you still

         23  have recourse, you will still have recourse.  And

         24  I'm not, you know, giving respect, if it is this

         25  Commissioner or that Commissioner, I still believe
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          2  that the end of the day, in particular, we're in a

          3  different world today with the security issues also,

          4  there are all kinds of concerns here.  And I think

          5  it is something we should address, it is something

          6  that has real value and has teeth to it.  And I can

          7  tell you, there are people from all walks of life

          8  who are saying to us, we need some enforcement,

          9  tougher enforcement, and that is the concern I have

         10  with the issue before hand today.

         11                 MR. KOVNOR:  I will just, I do not

         12  want to take other people's time, but I would say,

         13  unfortunately, it's possible that you would have a

         14  vindictive Commissioner.  I do not think that we do

         15  in this instance, it's possible and that is why - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I wish

         17  Commissioners had such power, you know it does not

         18  work that way.

         19                 MR. KOVNOR:  Well, that is why - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  You have not yet

         21  proven, I'm not talking about a small issue, someone

         22  taking down someone's sidewalk, arguing about a

         23  sidewalk bill, arguing about a hydrant was placed in

         24  front of someone's house, a curb cut, an inspector

         25  coming down.  You know I have got to give a lot of
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          2  credit to the City agencies, I mean there are so

          3  many opportunities to take advantage, even for the

          4  elected officials, I do not think the vindictiveness

          5  is what we have deal with today.

          6                 And, let's, come on, give us a little

          7  break, a little respect.

          8                 MR. KOVNOR:  Unfortunately, the

          9  federal courts have stricken, not actions of the

         10  Council, because the Council does respect the

         11  Constitution, but have stricken a number of actions

         12  of this Administration on First Amendment grounds in

         13  the past several years and it is worrisome.  And

         14  that is why it seems to me when you leave it to the

         15  Council and not turn over all legislative power to

         16  the Mayor - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  There is a new

         18  Administration coming in, come on, a person who is

         19  in the media business, so would you think that they

         20  would, that I'm concerned that the next Commissioner

         21  is going to start restricting, now you're going to

         22  tell me, pro, maybe because Bloomberg is not the

         23  written media, so he is going to put restrictions

         24  because he does not want, he wants to put you out of

         25  business, come on.
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          2                 MR. KOVNOR:  It does not depend on

          3  any particular person.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  But you said it

          5  did, you said it did.

          6                 MR. KOVNOR:  It's the authority.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  You said before -

          8   -

          9                 MR. KOVNOR:  But we had a record of,

         10  unfortunately, misuse in terms of First Amendment

         11  area over reaching by the City Administration, not

         12  by the Council.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank God for the

         14  courts and they have stricken it.  Even though some

         15  of it has not gone to the highest court, but let's

         16  not get into it.  But listen under every

         17  Administration, I'm sure under your Administration

         18  when you were there, there were constitutional

         19  issues also.  Listen, let's, that is, you know - -

         20                 MR. KOVNOR:  Okay, thank you very

         21  much, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I thank you, I

         23  appreciate it, thank you.

         24                 Oh, one second.

         25                 MR. KOVNOR:  I'm sorry.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member

          3  Lopez, I'm sorry.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I see your

          5  bill and I want to thank you for it, taking an

          6  affirmative action to moving ahead to try to resolve

          7  this problem.

          8                 I have a couple of questions about

          9  this bill, who is going to enforce it?

         10                 MR. KOVNOR:  Well the Department of

         11  Transportation is given the authority to site, place

         12  violations on any box that does not meet its

         13  obligations, and that would come before the

         14  Environmental Control Board who would adjudicate it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Let me bring

         16  you back to where my concern is.  It is not about

         17  the Sanitation Department or anybody else giving you

         18  summonses, that is not my concern, because my real

         19  concern is the following thing, I want those boxes

         20  to be there safely and beautiful.  That is it, I do

         21  not want nothing else, I do not want no summonses

         22  being given to anybody.

         23                 I understand that the boxes can be

         24  and should be there, but they should not be there

         25  under the conditions that they are right now.  Then
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          2  when I read your bill, you put something here that

          3  look very beautiful, three things.

          4                 1.  That the owners have to be

          5  notified.  Notified by who, in regard of damage of

          6  the boxes, in regard of the boxes not to be in the

          7  right place, notified by who?  Who is going to be

          8  monitoring this, because right now that is part of

          9  the problem? That it does not exist, no one in

         10  charge of making sure that these boxes are in the

         11  proper place, that they have not been removed to a

         12  wrong location, and that they are kept in good

         13  shape.  Who is going to do that part of the job?

         14                 MR. KOVNOR:  In addition to

         15  Department of Transportation employees, members of

         16  the public will be able to notify any box owner that

         17  it is in the wrong place and that it is not

         18  maintained, because the phone number and the email

         19  address will be on the box.

         20                 And I want to say that for the

         21  newspaper industry they want to know when their

         22  boxes are not in the right place or improperly

         23  maintained.  And the fact that anyone can do it, I

         24  think will move this to dramatically forward.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then would you
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          2  be sympathetic to the idea that we assign

          3  responsibility to the Community Boards of the area,

          4  in which residents of the area can go to the

          5  hearings that the communities of the areas have

          6  every month to notify the Community Boards that

          7  these particular boxes are not in good shape, they

          8  are in the middle of the street, they are

          9  endangering the safety of people?  And then under

         10  the Community Board procedures, which become

         11  immediately an official notification where nobody

         12  can claim, we never received no calls, because how

         13  do we know here that the newspapers received a call

         14  from a resident?  How do we know that the newspapers

         15  or the other publications have been told effectively

         16  and in a manner that makes sense that that did

         17  happen, and that they did not take no action?  That

         18  will be something that you would be amicable to, to

         19  include it as a function of the Community Boards,

         20  where the Community Boards get notified monthly by

         21  community residents, they know where to go directly,

         22  Community Board is the place to go, notified and

         23  told, look these boxes are out of control, and then

         24  they take that information and they codify it and

         25  pass it to you and to the Commissioners that are in
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          2  charge, would you be sympathetic to that?

          3                 MR. KOVNOR:  I think that makes

          4  sense, Council member, I think it would be useful.

          5  And for the not responsible box owner operator, the

          6  notion it would defeat an ability to say, we did not

          7  know about it, because it would confirm that they

          8  would have had notice, and it would be something

          9  that the Environmental Control Board could take into

         10  consideration when they were, when anyone was

         11  challenging the truth as to whether they were

         12  violated of their obligations or not.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay.

         14                 MR. KOVNOR:  So I would think it

         15  would be positive.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then that is

         17  very helpful, if you agree to that.  That the

         18  Counsel of this Committee is taking notes of this

         19  suggestion, that maybe to modify this?  Thank you,

         20  okay.

         21                 The other question that I have about

         22  your bill, in your bill you talk about $100 fine.

         23  In all honesty, to me that is not sufficient to make

         24  somebody understand that if you do this, again and

         25  again and again, that is on page 5, $100 is a piece
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          2  of cake to pay.  One publication can pay $100

          3  probably a day.  Why? Because the cost of the

          4  advertising that they have in the newspaper, all the

          5  publications, that it would not be no problem to

          6  violate the law, because they would have the money

          7  to pay it.

          8                 Then the proposal that you put here

          9  about $100 penalty, it is insufficient for me.  I

         10  will agree the first time, I will agree the second

         11  time, but when the third time come and the problem

         12  persists in the same location, that is insufficient.

         13    Would you be willing to change that?

         14                 MR. KOVNOR:  Well let me say, Council

         15  member, that is in addition to the cost of removal

         16  and storage.  If a box is improperly maintained on

         17  notice and the City would have the power to remove

         18  and store, the owner would pay the removal cost, the

         19  storage cost plus $100 per box, per violation.  So

         20  collectively --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  But if it

         22  happened again, and it happened again, how do you,

         23  in other words, how do you deal with repeat

         24  offenders?  And I do not like the Rockefeller Drug

         25  Laws, for you to know.
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          2                 MR. KOVNOR:  Well I think that this

          3  is, we believe that this will provide more than

          4  adequate incentive to comply, and it may be that if

          5  you give this a record and people are repeat

          6  offenders that you may want to take it up.  But I

          7  would think that no newspaper that foolish, I speak

          8  once to have a record of consistent violations, they

          9  would make sure that the people who operate these

         10  and place these boxes and fill them and are

         11  responsible for keeping them clean and neat are

         12  doing their job. And if they have a serious problems

         13  with that, I do not, I do not, this, it seems to me

         14  is adequate incentive, and if it is not, that is

         15  something that could be revisited in the future.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Okay, I

         17  disagree with you on that one.

         18                 On the last point that I have to make

         19  is in regard to, give me one second, in the piece of

         20  legislation you have, page 3 on the part of a local

         21  law, the document.

         22                 MR. KOVNOR:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  You know go

         24  back on page 3, according to what is in here, these

         25  boxes you agree not to locate them next to the curb
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          2  that is cut for people with disabilities. Right now

          3  as we speak everywhere in my district these boxes

          4  are precisely there.  And part of the reason I am so

          5  upset about this issue in my community, I do not

          6  know other communities in the City, but my community

          7  have, for a series of reasons that have to do with

          8  the hospitals, with certain facilities, have a

          9  bigger percentage of people in wheelchairs in my

         10  area, in my district.  The people in wheelchairs

         11  are, you know, very predominant side in my area, and

         12  constantly they have to deal with the hassle of

         13  these boxes.  Then in here you make mention of it

         14  and you make clear that the boxes should not be

         15  closer than two feet to the curb.  Right now they

         16  are, not even closer, they are some time on the

         17  curb.

         18                 MR. KOVNOR:  I'm sure and I have seen

         19  it as well and that is why making this the law,

         20  which you can do by passing this, will address that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  How do I know

         22  that this is going to be enforced?  You know, how do

         23  I know, you gave me the agreement that you got with

         24  the City and I was very happy when I got that

         25  agreement, because it caught my attention that the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  agreement is being violated left and right.  Then

          3  that tells me, that is what that tells me that this

          4  needs to be regulated. Because if the agreement

          5  would have been in compliance, the problem that we

          6  have would not exist, right now, if that agreement

          7  was followed by everybody.  But it was not followed,

          8  therefore, that tells me that we need to pass a

          9  piece of legislation.

         10                 Therefore, how do I know, because

         11  there is nothing in here that guarantee that that is

         12  not going to happen?

         13                 MR. KOVNOR:  One, I want to say the

         14  agreement was in 1984, it was between the New York

         15  Times and the City and a number of major newspapers

         16  agreed to comply.  Not every paper did and the non-

         17  newspaper boxes were not covered by it, and they

         18  received constitutional protection in 1988 from the

         19  United States Supreme Court.

         20                 This covers everybody, this is

         21  enforceable, when I say this, I mean, this bill.

         22  And if there is a box that is in a curb cut or even

         23  within two feet of the curb cut, it should not be

         24  there, and none of the people I'm speaking for will

         25  tolerate their boxes being there.  Now sometimes
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          2  boxes get shoved and pushed or knocked by a car into

          3  a curb cut, they need to know that promptly. It is

          4  their job to correct it promptly and they're

          5  committed to doing that, and if they do not, there

          6  will be fines and cost of removal, if necessary.

          7                 But this for the first time would

          8  give the City the ability to enforce something as to

          9  all the boxes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Council Member

         12  Freed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Yes, thank

         14  you.  Just to follow- up what Margarita was asking.

         15  You talk about several cases here where you're

         16  saying that the newsracks should not be basically

         17  within two feet of the curb cuts.  You also talk

         18  about it not blocking access to buses and when it is

         19  an obstruction.  But if you read back further, you

         20  talk about a newsrack that is in one of these

         21  positions, you say that it should be removed

         22  promptly, but you do not define promptly, promptly

         23  is an awfully vague term?

         24                 MR. KOVNOR:  It's a term that does

         25  appear in litigation.  There is no reason for delay,
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          2  they have to have, as soon as they have notice, I

          3  believe certainly for the wide range of papers I

          4  represent here, they're going to do it quickly.  On

          5  the next occasion and they are there regularly,

          6  people go out, some go out every day, some go out

          7  every couple of days, to correct it, and if they do

          8  not, they can be given a ticket, a summonses and

          9  they can be charged.

         10                 The answer is like with everything

         11  else it's not going to lead to a 100 percent

         12  compliance every day, but it will significantly, and

         13  I believe dramatically improve the situation on the

         14  streets.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  My problem is

         16  that even following your scenario, assuming someone

         17  goes out, there is a box in a curb cut.  You know,

         18  if you take time to do, you have to serve a

         19  violation, go through the usual legal procedure,

         20  that means you are basically, you are preventing

         21  people from the use of the sidewalks, and whereas,

         22  there are people who have to depend on wheelchairs

         23  or because they have a disability.

         24                 Same way of trying to get in and out

         25  of buses, because people, particularly seniors in
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          2  this City, depend heavily on buses.  And I have seen

          3  these things blocking, you know, getting on a bus,

          4  where you have then made it really impossible for

          5  someone who may be partially impaired to get on the

          6  bus.

          7                 So saying promptly to me does not

          8  make it.  Either you put in something about 24 hours

          9  or you give the City the immediate right to remove

         10  it when these situations are found. Because it seems

         11  to me that is only way that you're being fair to the

         12  citizens of the City.

         13                 MR. KOVNOR:  Council member, the

         14  process of getting consensus among all the

         15  newspapers was not an easy one.  I do want to say we

         16  put on there not only telephone number but email.

         17  People are going to be able, the public, as soon as

         18  they see it, is going to be anybody who cares and is

         19  bothered and who has a phone or has a laptop, is

         20  going to be able to notify the owner of the problem.

         21  I'm telling you that the newspapers for whom I

         22  speak, I do not speak for everybody, but newspapers

         23  have an interest.  They do not want their boxes in

         24  the wrong place, they want them in the right place,

         25  and if a box has been shoved or moved, they want to
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          2  know right away.

          3                 At the same time, it's possible that,

          4  you know, they should have due process as well,

          5  which is why it is not a very complicated preceding.

          6    I doubt that it will include lawyers, but like

          7  other proceedings that have come before the

          8  Environmental Control Board, they may be

          9  disciplined.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  I like the

         11  idea of discipline, but again, when we're talking

         12  due process, and hey, I'm also a lawyer, but I have

         13  to tell you, that when these boxes become an

         14  obstruction so that people literally cannot use the

         15  sidewalks, for someone who is in a wheelchair and it

         16  is difficult enough, to allow one of these boxes

         17  block their access to getting on or off a sidewalk,

         18  I find kind of abhorrent, and I think there has to

         19  be a different process.

         20                 Let me also make one other

         21  suggestion, while you're requiring the name, address

         22  and email, phone number of who controls the box, I

         23  would also require a request that you have also

         24  appended to the box specifically who, if it is DOT,

         25  someone could also call, with their name, their
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          2  address, phone number, email as well.  So that when

          3  someone else notifies the owners of the box, that

          4  they can also notify DOT or the local precinct.

          5                 MR. KOVNOR:  Well I think that is

          6  good.  I thought that Council Member Lopez's

          7  suggestion that they also notify the Community

          8  Board.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Or the

         10  Community Board, right.

         11                 MR. KOVNOR:  Is a good idea as well.

         12  But we share, today there is no restrictions.  This

         13  places it subject to restriction, and I think it

         14  will work significantly, and I urge that you try it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  My only

         16  concern is if the restrictions are too vague or

         17  they're drawn out too long, you know, I agree with

         18  Council Member Lopez also, that I think $100 may be

         19  the first time, but I do not see any reason why it

         20  should not be graduated.  Because $100 rapidly

         21  becomes the cost of doing business, because when you

         22  look at some of those ugly, little plastic boxes, it

         23  is a one time expense and someone just drops off the

         24  papers, as opposed to actually having someone

         25  selling your newspapers or something like that, it's
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          2  a cost of doing business, and I think it should be

          3  higher.

          4                 Then last question or two last

          5  questions.  One, we discussed the question of the

          6  landmark districts.  I was at Hill v. Boston, I

          7  think was the case?

          8                 MR. KOVNOR:  Beacon Hill is the case

          9  you're referring to.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Beacon Hill,

         11  okay, where the court did hold that in landmark

         12  districts, the Landmarks Commission or maybe the Art

         13  Commission can have some say over what the boxes

         14  look like.  And I think given the number of Historic

         15  Districts where you have all these concerns and all

         16  these requirements on the City and on owners to

         17  conform with certain requirements, and then you have

         18  four or five or ten or fifteen ugly, little plastic

         19  boxes that are not maintained, that just mar the

         20  entire Historic District.  It seems to me to run

         21  counter to what you should be doing, and I think you

         22  should add that.

         23                 Then lastly, you know, Chairman Dear

         24  brings up a very important question and that is the

         25  security question.  As you may know, I live like
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          2  three and half blocks north of the Trade Center.

          3  The entire time that we were being, you know, where

          4  we were literally in a lock down or frozen out

          5  condition, all those plastic boxes, which by the way

          6  do melt and give off noxious fumes, were just

          7  sitting there, and every one of them that you could

          8  get into became a security risk.  And we had boxes

          9  that someone, and I distinctly remember one where

         10  someone had put a political poster in the face of

         11  the box, and this was obviously done before

         12  September 11th, and the entire time, up until maybe

         13  last week when I complained about it at one of these

         14  hearings, that political poster stayed in there.

         15  The box was not used, yet anyone could have gone

         16  there and put a bomb, you know, anything behind

         17  those doors.  And I am wondering how you're going to

         18  deal with that, because there are going to be a lot

         19  of security sensitive areas, and hopefully we will

         20  never have another incident like the Trade Center,

         21  but we do live in a different world now?

         22                 MR. KOVNOR:  Well one, we do put in,

         23  in paragraph 7 K that, the prohibition of installing

         24  or maintaining a box where it endangers the safety

         25  of persons or property, and then we do set forth an
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          2  emergency authority for the Department of

          3  Transportation and even to remove.  So we are

          4  cognizant of that, and I think this bill has been

          5  drafted, with the help of your staff, addresses

          6  that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  That is it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  That is it?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  I did have one

         10  more, but I cannot remember what it was.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Because I have

         12  some other witnesses and I need some time.  Okay,

         13  thank you.

         14                 MR. KOVNOR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I want to make a

         16  comment about, add to that security issue, to me,

         17  that is something that we should be very, very

         18  conscious of today.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Oh, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  And I can tell you

         21  I have seen boxes used as garbage, - -

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Oh, I know

         23  what my other question was, yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: - - pails, and also

         25  as fire, you know, people who have fire bugs who
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          2  have nothing else to do, blow up the place.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Oh, I have

          4  seen them on fire, and I said, the problem, I mean

          5  the plastic boxes, when they melt if the fire is hot

          6  enough, they give off toxic fumes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  One, I have

          9  one other question, and I will just make the comment

         10  that one of the other things here talks about not

         11  putting the boxes adjacent to park or continuous to

         12  park where the sidewalk is an interval part of the

         13  park.  And we have a number of places, and again,

         14  Downtown we just did the greenery of Greenwich

         15  Street, where the entire, the sidewalk is now

         16  essentially part of the park, and we put in benches

         17  and we put in trees, and we also have boxes all over

         18  the place. And it would seem to me that we may, that

         19  that might need a little bit more flushing out.

         20                 One last thing, you talked about

         21  emergency conditions.  I would think that any box

         22  that blocks a curb cut, that blocks access to a bus,

         23  that becomes, blocks access to vaults or other

         24  facilities should also be subject to the emergency

         25  conditions and should be removed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I would agree with

          3  you, but as we said, the two bills before us, what I

          4  would like to do, is hopefully by next week come up

          5  with something that we can vote on, either the

          6  amended versions of either of the bills that are

          7  before us.  But I do like to do something, because I

          8  think more and more I see this as a very serious

          9  issue and we should deal with it.

         10                 The next panel of witnesses, John

         11  Segal, Jeff Fligelman and David Grae.

         12                 MR. SEGAL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         13  I'm John Segal of the Law Firm, Price, Carroll,

         14  Ross, Elope (phonetic) representing Gotham Writers

         15  Workshop.  The gentlemen, to my right and left, are

         16  David Grae and Jeff Fligelman.  They are the

         17  founders and partners in that business.  It is a

         18  responsible New York City business, it has 15 full-

         19  time employees, 100 part- time employees, and 5,000

         20  students.  Newsracks are this businesses exclusive

         21  means of marketing and advertising.  They have a

         22  tremendous sunk cost in the investment they have

         23  made to date in their newsracks that are on the

         24  street.  Because it is the companies exclusive means

         25  of marketing and advertising, it is critical to this
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          2  business that those newsracks be well received, not

          3  be resented by the communities that are, in fact,

          4  their potential markets.  So you have the unusual

          5  situation here of a business that is now not

          6  regulated coming before the Council and saying that

          7  it will support regulation, if it is appropriate and

          8  reasonable regulation, when right now it is

          9  unregulated.

         10                 I think this has been a productive

         11  process, we learned of the dependency of this

         12  legislation, I believe, last week.  After the last

         13  hearing, we have had conversations with staff, with

         14  the agency, a number of interested parties, and I

         15  think it has been productive.  I do agree that it is

         16  premature at this moment for there to be legislation

         17  because I think a lot of new issues have arisen that

         18  have been important new information both for the

         19  Council and for my client.  But I do believe that if

         20  there is going to be a bill, it can be both more

         21  effective and less bureaucratic than 943- A.

         22                 Right now there is no regulation of

         23  the ability of Gotham Writer's Workshop or any of

         24  the other free publications to put boxes on the

         25  street.  They are not subject to the voluntary
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          2  agreement that Mr. Kovnor spoke about.  Until a week

          3  ago, they did not know there was a voluntary

          4  agreement between this City and the newspapers, and

          5  they did not know of the place restrictions that

          6  were contained in that voluntary agreement.  Right

          7  now there are no maintenance requirements, all the

          8  complaints that we hear about the look and the

          9  appearance of these boxes and the condition in which

         10  they're maintained are unregulated.  It is

         11  essentially right now the wild west out there in

         12  which people put boxes where they want, where they

         13  please.

         14                 What we need is not a delegation of

         15  this issue to the Transportation Commissioner under

         16  vague standards.  What I believe everybody agrees

         17  on, and that includes the business that I'm

         18  representing that is now unregulated, what

         19  everybody, I think, agrees on is that we need clear

         20  and specific place restrictions. These boxes should

         21  not be in crosswalks, they should not be in curb

         22  cuts, they should not be impeding bus shelters, and

         23  this business is willing and interested in living

         24  under a law that spells out very clearly where they

         25  can and cannot put the boxes.
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          2                 In terms of safety and security there

          3  are some things the members should know.  For

          4  instance, it is not infrequent that the Police

          5  Department asks Gotham Writer's Workshop and

          6  probably other publishers or distributors of

          7  literature on the street, to remove their boxes.

          8  For instance, Times Square on New Year's Eve, these

          9  guys take their boxes out of there because the

         10  Police Department does not want them there.  There

         11  are a variety of ways to deal with that, the

         12  principal way to deal with that is with the

         13  maintenance requirements.  If there is a requirement

         14  that you go out and check your box periodically,

         15  that will cut down on the ability of people to

         16  misuse those boxes, put trash or potentially other

         17  materials in there.

         18                 Gotham is willing to live by, and

         19  indeed, would like clear and specific maintenance

         20  requirements so the standard of what it means for a

         21  box to be maintained in a clean fashion, filled with

         22  materials, upright, attended to periodically,

         23  insured, these are all things that they are willing

         24  to live with, if they are set forth clearly and

         25  specifically in a bill.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 Finally, with respect to the bids,

          3  Gotham has worked with the Grand Central Partnership

          4  and others on multi- van racks. The problem is not

          5  that the bids lack legislation to do that, the

          6  problem is that there are few bids actually pursuing

          7  it.  We tried to make as clear as possible that

          8  Gotham is open to any discussion with any bid or any

          9  property owner that wants to pursue multi

         10  publication racks.  There seems to be very little

         11  interest in actually doing that, so I do not think

         12  that the legislation, the bid provision 943- A is

         13  going to solve that.  I think that is a financial

         14  problem and a matter of interest by the bids.

         15                 What we do not need is a bill with no

         16  standards delegated to the discretion of the

         17  Transportation Commissioner. Most importantly with

         18  no Council role, it is important that these

         19  gentlemen be able to come to the Council and to

         20  their elected representatives as they have in the

         21  past and discuss these issues, and know that there

         22  will be an accessible open forum to deal with these

         23  issues.  And what we certainly do not need is

         24  constitutional litigation.

         25                 Finally, if there is going to be a
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          2  bill, it is critical to this business that the bill

          3  contain, in essence, a grandfather clause that the

          4  investment that they have made in the newsracks that

          5  are out there, that is, you know, the bulk of the

          6  capital expenditures, literally in their business,

          7  that they be able to keep those boxes on the street.

          8    If they have to move them, fine.  If they're in a

          9  place where you legislate they cannot be, they will

         10  move them, but they need to be able to keep those

         11  boxes that they have already paid for out on the

         12  streets, so that this bill does not become a taking

         13  of their capital investment.

         14                 I know time is late, so let me cut it

         15  short here, and ask for any questions or comments

         16  that the members have?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you, no

         18  questions or anything, thanks.

         19                 MR. SEGAL:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. SEGAL:  Councilman Dear, Mr.

         22  Fligelman wants to add just one thing.

         23                 MR. FLIGELMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         24    Just to be clear who we are, we're grassroots New

         25  York City Writing School. We teach creative writing

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            69

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  here, we teach play writing, fiction writing, poetry

          3  writing, all of our teachers live in New York City,

          4  our employees work hard to get people into class.

          5  And I implore the Committee not to put us out of

          6  business.  I have seen, and I do not mean to sound,

          7  it sounds crazy, no one plans to do that, obviously,

          8  but I have seen proposed DOT regulations, I have

          9  them in black and white, and they say, they have

         10  proposed in the past, all boxes need to be made of

         11  metal, which obviously would remove,- - I can show

         12  you them, Council Member Lopez.  And unfortunately,

         13  I saw that, and we met about this same issue several

         14  years ago, Mr. Chair, and we had discussions and you

         15  said that is really not the issue.  I appreciate

         16  that, and in which case it could be in the law, you

         17  know, when my Counsel talks about a grandfather

         18  clause, that is exactly why we're concerned.

         19                 The cost of removing, by losing the

         20  sunk cost of our boxes and having to replace them

         21  with boxes that cost twice as much, that

         22  deteriorate, that rust, et cetera, that cut people's

         23  clothing and person, to me would be, it could

         24  bankrupt the company, I could not afford it.

         25  Similarly, those proposed DOT regs, which I have and
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          2  I can show you, would place a charge of $60 a box.

          3  Right, so that would cost me over $100,000 that I

          4  would hand to the City, I do not have $100,000 to

          5  hand to the City to stay in business to employ

          6  people in this City.

          7                 Just the other day at that hearing,

          8  and Counsel for the Department of Transportation

          9  suggested that boxes cannot be on streets, because

         10  they could tip over, this was right, a trash can

         11  could tip over, anything can tip over.  It might

         12  sound, and we weigh our boxes, we put, I will put 50

         13  pounds of sand, 100 pounds of sand, 150 pounds of

         14  sand, whatever rule you want to make.  But the truth

         15  is when I hear the Counsel for the Department of

         16  Transportation tells me, right, that if it can be

         17  tipped over, it's dangerous.  Anything on the street

         18  can be tipped over.  There is a disconnect between

         19  what people want to do and what people say that

         20  they're going to do, and that is our fear.

         21                 I completely support every regulation

         22  to restrict the place of the box, to fine me if it

         23  is not in that place, make it my problem, tell me

         24  what I cannot do, let me run my business, I implore

         25  you to let me run my business.  Fine me, you want it
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          2  to go up in multiples, $100, $200, $500 for a fine,

          3  I will pay, my boxes are not going to be there.  I

          4  support that completely.

          5                 You want a Community Board to call my

          6  school and tell us to move the box, we will move the

          7  box, that is the way we act today.  I just want to

          8  stay in business.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Can I make a

         11  comment, Mr. Chairman?  The material of plastic,- -

         12                 MR. FLIGELMAN:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: - -  is a

         14  problem, based on fire, it is just a comment, and

         15  you do not need to - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  We're not even - -

         17

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: - -  I'm just

         19  explaining to you what are the complaints in my

         20  community from the residents of the community who

         21  have called my office in occasions when these boxes

         22  are on fire, and they burn, and there is nothing you

         23  can do about it, they burn.

         24                 MR. FLIGELMAN:  They melt, they do

         25  not burn.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  They melt,

          3  they burn, you know, they set on fire inside and

          4  then they become a fire, and that is a problem.

          5                 MR. SEGAL:  Let me suggest that

          6  perhaps it would make sense if we discuss this issue

          7  directly.  We have checked with the manufacturer of

          8  the boxes, some of the concerns about what odors and

          9  others and fumes that the boxes give off if they

         10  burn are untrue.  If people are burning the

         11  materials inside the boxes, that is hardly the cause

         12  by the owner of the box.  But I suggest that we

         13  discuss this as you develop legislation and see if

         14  there are any issues.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  We will, we will.

         16  Okay, go ahead, address it.

         17                 MR. GRAE:  Six years ago -- well, I

         18  would like to address it because you're bringing up

         19  plastic.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Listen, when we get

         21  to that point, we will deal with it, okay?  Let's

         22  not discuss it right now.  Thank you.

         23                 I have no other questions.  Do you

         24  have any other comments?

         25                 MR. GRAE:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Go ahead.

          3                 MR. GRAE:  I would just ask that you,

          4  whatever bill would be voted on next week, that we

          5  get in enough time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  We will not do

          7  anything, as you know, I have been talking to your

          8  Counsel several times, I did give him the courtesy

          9  and will extend that courtesy, that is not the way I

         10  work and I will do everything I can to bring

         11  everybody inside.

         12                 MR. GRAE:  Okay, and also - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  What the end bill

         14  will be, I cannot tell you, that is something the

         15  members have to - -

         16                 MR. GRAE:  I would also like to, you

         17  know, about our business, as my business partner,

         18  Jeff, mentioned, we teach creative writing, and we

         19  teach the best classes that we could possibly teach.

         20    I have an MA in creative writing, my business

         21  partner, Jeff, has an MFA in creative writing, we do

         22  not have MBA's.  We started a business to teach the

         23  best creative writing classes in the City.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  What is MFA?

         25                 MR. FLIGELMAN:  Master of Fine Arts.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Fine Arts.

          3                 MR. GRAE:  You see that is how

          4  obscure it is, Mr. Chairperson, that you do not know

          5  what it is.  So we're really out- -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  I asked my

          7  colleagues, I know I have some degrees, I just

          8  learned.  I have an MSW, Doctor of Law.

          9                 MR. GRAE:  Right, well we do not have

         10  MBA's, but we teach creative writing and we would

         11  like to be able to continue doing that.  And we

         12  would like to work with this Council to make rules.

         13  We have always supported regulations, and the reason

         14  we are here today is because we were alarmed in 1995

         15  when the Counsel for DOT, the very person who I

         16  believe would be writing the regulations, who I

         17  believe is still the Counsel, submitted rules to us

         18  that would effectively put us out of business.

         19                 So to give them the sole power to

         20  make these decisions is a problem.  And we fully

         21  support the bill put forth by Mr. Kovnor, that the

         22  newspapers, the one you are considering, we fully

         23  support that.  We support regulations, we support

         24  keeping our City streets safe and keeping the boxes

         25  out of crosswalks and anywhere else where they can
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          2  cause a public safety hazard.

          3                 Thanks very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Again, you, I have

          5  dealt with your partner five years ago.  I will deal

          6  with you now, I do not, for the record, I will say,

          7  I do not want to put you out of business.  I support

          8  what you do, I am one, and I'm sure my colleagues

          9  too, but to me, my personal pet peeve is to help

         10  people to write.  I would like to do everything I

         11  can, one of the things that are missing today, even

         12  people with the biggest degrees just do not know how

         13  to write anymore, and that is my biggest pet peeve.

         14  I instill that in my children, and I will instill it

         15  wherever I can, and I support your efforts of work

         16  that you do.

         17                 MR. FLIGELMAN:  And Mr. Chairman, I

         18  invite you to come to anyone of our free classes at

         19  Barnes and Noble, - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. FLIGELMAN: - -  which we do

         22  several times a month all over the City at Barnes

         23  and Noble.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  You're trying to

         25  tell me I do not know how to write, okay, thank you.
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          2                 MR. FLIGELMAN:  No, we offer free

          3  classes all over town.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  Our

          5  last witness, yes, you also claim to have some rules

          6  that you have seen, could you forward that to us?

          7                 MR. FLIGELMAN:  Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Okay, from DOT

          9  that claims that they were going to institute some

         10  regulations.

         11                 MR. SEGAL:  We will submit them to

         12  Mr. Schwartz.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you, I

         14  appreciate that.

         15                 Our last witness for this is Gorman

         16  Reilly.

         17                 MR. REILLY:  My name is Gorman

         18  Reilly.  I'm the Vice- President of Civitas, Inc.

         19  We are a public interest organization, 2,000 members

         20  on the Upper East Side in East Harlem, that is our

         21  area of concern on issues of Urban Planning and

         22  Neighborhood Life.

         23                 We support the initial legislation

         24  943- A.  The reason we support it is because it is

         25  comprehensive, that it invests authority in the
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          2  agency of government that knows more about the City

          3  streets and sidewalks than anyone in the whole City

          4  of New York, and that is where it has to be.

          5                 We all know that there is a problem,

          6  and the problems begin to mount.  On the way to this

          7  hearing, at 93rd Street and Lexington Avenue, I

          8  noticed as I went to the subway, the New York Times,

          9  which we heard has the highest regard for their

         10  image in this matter, has placed what appears to be

         11  a permanent warehouse facility, a blue metal box

         12  that sits at the curb cut on 93rd Street on the

         13  southeast corner of Lexington Avenue.  It's

         14  padlocked, it does not even sell anything.  It

         15  appears to be under the impression that the First

         16  Amendment gives newspaper publishers the right and

         17  the authority to use the public sidewalks as their

         18  own property however they wish.

         19                 And to add something to that there is

         20  stationed at the 88th Street and Lexington Avenue

         21  Bus Stop right at the head of the bus stop where the

         22  pole announces the site, there are two newspaper

         23  racks there.  On the outside is a Spanish Newspaper

         24  called Hoi, on the inside where people come in and

         25  out of the buses, the New York Times, it has been
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          2  there for a week, because that is as long as I have

          3  noticed it, it's probably been there for months.

          4                 Comprehensive legislation is

          5  required, and the authority must be put in the hands

          6  of somebody who can respond not only in good time,

          7  but immediately.  The guidelines that have been

          8  placed forth in the original legislation are

          9  comprehensive, it talks about what you can do, and

         10  indeed, it says under no other circumstances may you

         11  restrict a permittee.  So it treads very carefully

         12  and lightly on the issue of content.

         13                 And for this reason we support that.

         14  It's late in the day for the Publisher's Association

         15  and even the vendors, I call them vendor boxes, the

         16  owners of those boxes, to come forward and say we

         17  want regulation, but we want it to be as defuse and

         18  as light- handed as possible, and for that reason we

         19  support it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Thank you.  I

         21  understand you loud and clear and that is why we're

         22  having these hearings.  And it's just interesting

         23  what you're saying, the box that you're talking

         24  about is not even a box that they sell the

         25  newspaper, they store them.  So whoever has to come,
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          2  you know they probably drop them off in the middle

          3  of the night, and then probably someone picks them

          4  up to distribute them in that area.  This is

          5  unbelievable how outrageous this problem is and how

          6  difficult this problem is.  But if you were a shoe

          7  store or some store and put out a little stand

          8  outside your store, I can guarantee you within hours

          9  that the DOT or Sanitation, someone would be there

         10  to give you a citation.

         11                 And this is an issue that we're

         12  trying to grapple for now for some time and I hope

         13  that we come to some resolution.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 MR. REILLY:  I have one question.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Sure.

         17                 MR. REILLY:  May we have access to

         18  the new proposed or additional proposed legislation?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR:  Do we have a copy?

         20    The new legislation is on the side over there, you

         21  have access to anything you want to have.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 All right this meeting is adjourned.

         24  And then what I will try to do is try to see if we

         25  can put a meeting together for next week.  Because
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          2  depending on the schedule on the full Council

          3  meetings, we may have more than one meeting left, we

          4  may have another one, right?

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:40 p.m.)

          6

          7

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            81

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION
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